
1 
 

                          CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2023 

HELD REMOTELY & IN PERSON AT CITY HALL 
124 S. LEFEVRE ST.  

 
 

• Sign up to provide Public Comment at the meeting via calling in 
• Submit Written Public Comment Before 4 pm on (January 17, 2023) - *SEE NOTE* 
•  Join the Zoom Meeting – 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87923154710?pwd=VU1sQlIrRE5hWVdKRDlpUjQ4NVdodz09 
 
 
Meeting ID: 879 2315 4710 
Passcode: 188877 
One tap mobile 
+12532050468,,87923154710#,,,,*188877# US 
+12532158782,,87923154710#,,,,*188877# US (Tacoma) 
 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kcG4Xh3RLW 
 
 
 

 
 

WRITTEN PUBLIC COMMENTS 
If you wish to provide written public comments for the council meeting, please email your 
comments to sweathers@medical-lake.org by 4:00 p.m. the day of the council meeting and include 
all the following information with your comments: 
1. The Meeting Date 
2. Your First and Last Name 
3. If you are a Medical Lake resident 
4. The Agenda Item(s) which you are speaking about 
*Note – If providing written comments, the comments received will be acknowledged during the 
public meeting, but not read. All written comments received by 4:00 p.m. will be provided to the 
mayor and city council members in advance of the meeting. 

Questions or Need Assistance? Please contact City Hall at 509-565-5000 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81427343136?pwd=UC85WkdKVitlc2Z2MkI3bFp0dUMxQT09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87923154710?pwd=VU1sQlIrRE5hWVdKRDlpUjQ4NVdodz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kcG4Xh3RLW


2 
 

REGULAR SESSION – 6:30 PM 

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL 
A. Absence(s):  

 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL 
 

3. INTERESTED CITIZENS: AUDIENCE REQUESTS AND COMMENTS 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS / PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 

5. REPORTS 
a. Committee Reports 

i. Finance Committee 
ii. Public Safety Committee 

iii. Public Safety Update (FD3/Sheriff) 
iv. Public Works Committee 

b. Council Comments 
c. Mayor 
d. City Administrator & City Staff 

i. Legislative Affairs Strategy Presentation 
ii. 2022 Budget Update 

 

6. WORKSHOP DISCUSSION  
A. Critical Areas Ordinance Update 
B. Credit/Fuel Card Policy and Procedure Update 
C. City Council Internal Committee Assignments 
D. Maintenance Journeyman and Lead Requirements 

 

7. ACTION ITEMS 
A. Consent Agenda 

i. Approve January 3, 2023, minutes 
ii. Approve January 17, 2023, Payroll Claim Warrants 42050 through 42057 and Payroll 

Payable Warrants 20181 through 20185 in the amount of $126,245.44, Claim Warrants 
42081 through 42099 in the amount of $247,738.86, and 13th Month Claim Warrants 
42058 through 42080 in the amount of $87,251.19. 
 

B. Approval of City Council Vacancy Appointment Procedures 
 

8. RESOLUTIONS  
A. 23-566 DSHS Land Lease Amendment #2 
B. 23-567 Parks and Recreation Director Job Description 

 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – No items listed 
 

10. ORDINANCES  
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

 
11. EMERGENCY ORDINANCES – No items listed 

 

12. UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS  
 

13. INTERESTED CITIZENS 
 

14. EXECUTIVE SESSION – No items listed 
 

15. CONCLUSION 



City of Medical Lake Planning Department 
124 S. Lefevre St. 

Medical Lake, WA 99022 
509-565-5000 

www.medical-lake.org 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

Date of Staff Report: January 12, 2023 
 
Date of Hearing: February 7, 2023 
 
Staff Planner: Elisa Rodriguez 509-565-5019 or erodriguez@medical-lake.org 
 
Proposal: Critical Areas Ordinance Update 
 
SEPA: A Revised Determination of Non-Significance was made on October 6, 2022. 
 
 
PROPOSAL 
 
The City of Medical Lake is proposing an update to the Critical Areas Ordinance. First adopted in 1994 and 
updated in 2010, the current code is out of compliance with the Washington State Growth Management Act. 
(RCW 36.70A) and the Department of Ecology best available science recommendations. The proposal will 
replace Chapter 17.10 of the municipal code. 
 
RELEVANT APPROVAL CRITERIA 
 
In order to be approved, this proposal must comply with the criteria of Chapter 17 of the Medical Lake 
Municipal Code (MLMC). Amendments to development regulations can be approved if the review body finds 
that the criteria of MLMC Chapter 17.56.100 have been met. 
 
SUMMARY OF THE ORDINANCE 
 
The proposed critical areas ordinance has a primary goal of no net loss of functions for those critical areas 
within the city limits of Medical Lake. The critical areas being protected are wetlands, fish and wildlife habitat 
conservation areas, and frequently flooded areas. The critical areas ordinance provides development regulations 
for those properties containing critical areas. These regulations do not override any other local, state, or federal 
regulations or requirements, but rather work in conjunction with them. If the critical area does not allow 
reasonable use of the property, the owner may apply for an exception. In most instances, a critical areas permit 
will be required for development. The ordinance does list some minor exceptions to this requirement. When 
development is proposed, the owner or representative must submit an application that includes detailed 
identification and analysis of the critical area on the site. The delineation and analysis must be performed by a 
qualified professional. This qualified professional must also propose mitigation for the impacts of the proposed 

mailto:erodriguez@medical-lake.org


Staff Report for Critical Areas Ordinance 2022 Update  Page 2 
 

development. Any activity or development that is subject to this ordinance must first try to avoid impacts to the 
critical area. If that cannot be done, the applicant must try to minimize impacts and compensate those impacts 
with mitigation. Generally, the performance standards require the identified critical area to be protected with a 
buffer that limits human activity. When a critical areas permit is required, the Planning Commission will hold a 
public hearing and make a recommendation to City Council. The City Council will make the final decision on 
every application. 
 
PROCEDURAL HISTORY 
 
June 24, 2021,  Planning Commission (PC) introduction to a critical areas ordinance (CAO) update. 

(consultant) 
November 18, 2021,  PC CAO work session to review and discuss proposed ordinance language. (consultant) 
December 30, 2021,  PC CAO work session to review and discuss proposed ordinance language. (consultant) 
March 31, 2022,  PC CAO work session to review and discuss proposed ordinance language. (consultant) 
April 28, 2022,  PC CAO work session to review and discuss proposed ordinance language. (consultant) 
May 26, 2022,  PC CAO work session to review and discuss proposed ordinance language. (consultant) 
June 30, 2022,  PC CAO work session to review and discuss proposed ordinance language. (consultant) 
July 28, 2022,  PC CAO work session to discuss process and potential for replacing proposed ordinance 

language. (city planner) 
August 11, 2022,  PC special meeting CAO work session to review and discuss proposed ordinance 

language. (city planner) 
August 25, 2022,  PC CAO work session to review and discuss proposed ordinance language. (city planner) 
September 7, 2022,  SEPA Determination of Non-Significance issued. 
September 8, 2022,  Public Notice in Cheney Free Press. 
September 8, 2022,  PC special meeting CAO work session to review and discuss proposed ordinance 

language. (city planner) 
September 21, 2022 Intent to Adopt submitted to Washington State Department of Commerce. 
September 22, 2022 Public Hearing at Planning Commission. Public comment period extended to October 27, 

2022. 
October 6, 2022 SEPA Determination of Non-Significance reissued with revised SEPA Checklist. 
October 13, 2022 Public Notice in Cheney Free Press. 
October 27, 2022 Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of the CAO to City Council. 
November 17, 2022 Planning Commission voted to reconsider the CAO decision. Decision was tabled. 
December 15, 2022 Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of the CAO to City Council. 
January 6, 2023 Updated Intent to Adopt submitted to Washington State Department of Commerce. 
January 17, 2023 (Scheduled) City Council Workshop. 
January 19, 2023 (Scheduled) Public Notice in the Cheney Free Press. 
February 7, 2023 (Scheduled) Public Hearing at City Council to consider ordinance to adopt the CAO. 
February 21, 2023 (Scheduled) City Council second reading of the proposed CAO ordinance. 
 
 



Staff Report for Critical Areas Ordinance 2022 Update  Page 3 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
 
The Planning Commission must use the stated criteria in MLMC section 17.56.100 to evaluate the amendment 
and in making a recommendation to the City Council. The criteria along with the findings can be found in the 
Staff Report to Planning Commission dated September 15, 2022 (Exhibit). 
 
This update to the Critical Areas Ordinance is required by the State of Washington to come into compliance 
with legislative changes adopted in 2018. At the June 24, 2021 Planning Commission meeting, a planning 
consultant hired by the City initiated the process. For a year the consultant worked with the Planning 
Commission on ordinance language. Out of frustration with the prolonged process, the interim city 
administrator set a public hearing date for the September Planning Commission meeting. In June of 2022, the 
City hired an in-house city planner. The city planner, after reviewing the language developed by the consultant, 
considered it difficult to understand and implement and recommended starting over. The Planning Commission 
agreed to do so, even though it meant additional meetings to accomplish what was needed by September. The 
new language was gleaned from the City of Vancouver municipal code and altered to meet the conditions of 
Medical Lake. The Planning Commission spent many thoughtful hours reviewing the code, considering public 
comment, and revising the language.  
 
A public notice, inviting written comment advertising the public hearing, was posted on September 8, 2022. The 
public hearing was held at the September 22, 2022 meeting. Four citizens spoke during the hearing, three 
submitting written comment (Exhibit). The hearing was closed, but the written comment period was extended 
until October 27, 2022. Two additional citizens submitted written comment during this time (Exhibit). During 
the October 27 meeting, the Planning Commission deliberated over changes recommended by the city planner. 
Some of these changes were definitions to provide some clarity and some were the outcome of the public 
comment received. The recommended changes were adopted and the Commission voted unanimously to send 
the draft to City Council with a recommendation of approval. 
 
At the November 17, 2022 Planning Commission meeting a commissioner motioned to reconsider the October 
decision on the Critical Areas Ordinance. The motioned passed 3-2. The item was tabled until the December 
meeting with a request for the city planner to provide written response to a document of proposed changes put 
together by a commissioner and a private citizen.  
 
During the December 15, 2022 Planning Commission meeting, the commission deliberated over the document 
of proposed changes and the responses by the city planner. Some changes were adopted to the draft. The 
Commission once again voted unanimously to send the revised draft (Exhibit) along with staff report and 
findings (Exhibit) to the City Council with a recommendation of approval. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Commission recommends approval of the Critical Areas Ordinance Update (1/10/23 Draft). 
 
 
 
 
 



Staff Report for Critical Areas Ordinance 2022 Update  Page 4 
 

EXHIBITS 
 

A. Proposed Code Language 
1. Critical Areas Ordinance Update Draft, September 15, 2022 
2. Critical Areas Ordinance Update Draft, November 8, 2022 
3. Critical Areas Ordinance Update Draft, January 6, 2023 (attached) 

B. Public Notifications 
1. Legal Notice, Published in Cheney Free Press on September 8, 2022 
2. Legal Notice, Published in Cheney Free Press on October 13, 2022 

C. Meeting Minutes 
1. Planning Commission, September 22, 2022 
2. Planning Commission, October 27, 2022 
3. Planning Commission, November 17, 2022 
4. Planning Commission, December 15, 2022 

D. Public Comment 
1. Scott Holbrook, spoke and received at PC meeting, September 22, 2022 (attached) 
2. Tammy Roberson, spoke and received at PC meeting, September 22, 2022 (attached) 
3. Barbara Bauman, spoke and received at PC meeting, September 22, 2022 (attached) 
4. Marybeth Benson, spoke at PC meeting, September 22, 2022 (see minutes) 
5. Shirley Maike, received email, September 25, 2022 (attached) 
6. Shirley Maike, received email, September 29, 2022 (attached) 
7. Stewart Mitchell, received email, October 18, 2022 (attached) 
8. Diane Nichols, emailed to PC members after comment period, December 15, 2022 (attached) 

E. SEPA 
1. SEPA Checklist, September 7, 2022 
2. SEPA DNS, September 7, 2022 
3. Revised SEPA Checklist, October 6, 2022 (attached) 
4. Reissued SEPA DNS, October 6, 2022 (attached) 

F. Agency Responses 
1. Department of Natural Resources, email received September 23, 2022 (attached) 

G. Intent to Adopt 
1. Notice of Intent to Adopt, September 21, 2022  
2. Critical Areas Checklist, September 21, 2022 (attached) 
3. Commerce Acknowledgement Letter, September 22, 2022 
4. Commerce Acknowledgement Letter (for update), January 22, 2023 

H. Staff Report 
1. Staff Report and Recommendation to Planning Commission, September 15, 2022 (attached) 

I. Maps 
1. Wetland Map (attached) 
2. Frequently Flooded Areas (attached) 
3. Fish Habitats (attached) 

 









































































































































Updated __________ 

City of Medical Lake 
POLICY & PROCEDURES 

 

Credit Cards & Fuel Cards 
Policy 14.100 

 

 
 
Definitions 
 

1. Credit Card – a purchase card issued by a financial institution with an established credit limit. 

2. Fuel Card – a purchase card issued by a fuel card company for the sole purpose of purchasing fuel. 

3. Cardholder - Employees with access to a credit or fuel card. 

4. Fuel Card Manager – The City Administrator or designee. 

 

Card Responsibility and Accountability 

1. It is the responsibility of each individual cardholder to: 

a. Safeguard the credit or fuel card and card number at all times; lost or stolen credit or fuel card must be 
reported immediately to the credit card agency and the Finance Director; 

b. Not allow anyone to use a City card and/or card number who is not authorized to do so; 

c. Obtain and retain original itemized receipts for goods and services purchased. The purpose of the charge 
and the name of the individual involved must be written clearly on the receipt by the cardholder. The 
employee may be allowed to file an affidavit (Attachment A) in lieu of a receipt if the original receipt is 
lost or a receipt is not obtained; 

d. Reconcile card transactions by completing a Card Transaction Listing (Attachment D) and submitting it, 
along with supporting receipts and documentation, to their department head for review and approval. 
For fuel cards, this process will be completed by the Fuel Card Manager. Department Heads will then 
submit the approved Card Transaction Listing and supporting documentation in a timely manner to the 
Finance Department for review and payment processing; 

e. Surrender the credit card and corresponding support documentation to the Finance Department upon 
separation from the City of Medical Lake. 

2. It is the responsibility of the Finance Director to evaluate if current credit card limits are appropriate, conducted 
annually. Evaluation will be based on average monthly credit card purchases. 

 
 
Credit Card Usage: 
 
Procedures for Obtaining Credit Cards 

1. The Finance Director, with the approval of the City Administrator, may issue a credit card to an individual who 
meets the following conditions: 



Updated __________ 

a. He or she is an employee of the City of Medical Lake, and 

b. Said employee agrees to be held liable to the credit card company for all charges while conducting official 
City of Medical Lake business. 

c. The department or individual has demonstrated an identifiable operational need to have a card. 

d. Individual credit cards may not be in the name of a contractor, contract employee, or non-permanent City 
of Medical Lake Employee 

2. The City of Medical may establish a credit card in the name of a City of Medical Lake employee with a financial 
institution provider for City of Medical Lake business only. Department Heads may make requests for credit cards 
for employees, to be approved by the City Administrator. 

3. The Finance Director shall be responsible for the credit card application and credit limit setting process. Credit 
limits will be set based on expected monthly operational needs. All City of Medical Lake issued credit cards will 
include both the name of the City and the employee. 

4. Prior to receiving the new credit card, the credit card applicant shall read and sign the Credit Card Agreement 
(Attachment B) 

 
Authorized Card Use 

1. Travel Expenses. City Departments are hereby authorized to use credit cards to cover travel expenses incident to 
authorized lodging, meals, meeting registrations, and transportation. 

a. Within 15 days of the return date, the official or employee using a credit card shall submit a fully itemized 
travel expense voucher, including itemized receipts. Any expenses not allowed by the City Administrator 
shall be paid by the official or employee by check, United States currency, or salary deduction. 

b. If disallowed charges are not paid before the charge card billing is due and payable, the City of Medical 
Lake shall have a lien against the official or employee’s salary as provided in RCW 42.24.115. 

2. Authorized Purchases. Official budgeted government purchases include:   

a. Merchandise or services required as a function of their duties at the City of Medical Lake.   

b. Any purchase which exceeds the established purchase order limit must have a purchase order assigned 
prior to purchase.  

c. Purchase of food and/or non-alcoholic drinks may be made so long as they are purchased for City of 
Medical Lake events such as Employee Appreciation, Council Retreats and other council related events 
that require attending members to be present through typical lunch hours. Purchases must adhere to 
guidelines and documentation as set forth in Policy 14.112, Travel & Meals.  

3. Unauthorized and/or Inappropriate purchases. Credit cards must never be used to purchase items of personal or 
for non-City of Medical Lake purposes, even if the cardholder intends to reimburse the City of Medical Lake. 
Unauthorized and/or inappropriate use includes, but is not limited to: 

a. Items for personal use; 

b. Items for non-City of Medical Lake purposes; 



Updated __________ 

c. Cash or cash advances; 

d. Alcoholic beverages; 

e. Weapons of any kind or explosives; 

f. Relocation expenses; 

g. Personal entertainment; and 

h. Personal recreation 

4. Distribution. Credit card applications and distributions shall be the responsibility of the Finance Director or the 
Department Head of each department. Appointed Department Heads shall obtain approval of the City 
Administrator prior to obtaining credit cards for his/her department. The Department Head shall be responsible 
for use of credit cards within his/her department.  

5. Authority. The City Administrator shall have authority to revoke use of any credit card so issued, allow a 
department another credit card, or change a credit limit. The Finance Director shall have this authority in the 
absence of the City Administrator. 

 
Fuel Card Usage: 
 
Procedures for Obtaining Fuel Cards 

1. The Fuel Card Manager will be the City Administrator or designee. The responsibility of the Fuel Card Manager is 
to issue or revoke fuel cards as seen fit for the business purposes of the City.  

2. All unissued fuel cards will remain in the possession of the Finance Director. The Fuel Card Manager may request 
fuel cards from the Finance Director and issue said fuel card to an individual who meets the following conditions: 

a. He or she is an employee of the City of Medical Lake, and 

b. Said employee agrees to be held liable to the fuel card company for all charges while conducting official 
City of Medical Lake business. 

c. The department or individual has demonstrated an identifiable operational need to have a card. 

d. Individual fuel cards may not be in the name of a contractor, contract employee, or non-permanent City 
of Medical Lake Employee. 

3. The Finance Director shall be responsible for documenting the distribution of fuel cards to employees.  

4. All employees must sign a fuel card agreement (Attachment C) before utilizing any City fuel cards.  

 
 
Authorized Card Use 
 

1. Fuel cards are for the express purpose of fueling city vehicles and equipment. Under no circumstances is a fuel 
card to be used for personal vehicles or to purchase items other than fuel. 

2. Department Directors may enact more restrictive fuel card policies within their respective departments. 



 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF LOST OR DESTROYED RECEIPT 
 
 

Name: 
 

Position: 
 

Last four digits of card number: 

I declare on oath, that the original receipts for the transaction dated   of 

  from  has been lost or destroyed. The vendor has been contacted and 

is not able to provide a duplicate receipt for this purchase. Please accept the detail of the transaction 

below in lieu of an itemized receipt for this transaction. 

I understand that falsification of the itemization of this purchase constitutes an act of fraud. 
 

Items purchased Amount 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
Please list each item on a separate line. Use a supplemental sheet if necessary. 

 
Signature        

Finance Director Signature    

Date   

Date    

 



 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
 
 

CREDIT CARD USER AGREEMENT 
 
 

I,________________________, as an employee of the City of Medical Lake accept 
personal responsibility for the safeguard and proper use of the City credit card (last four 
numbers) #________ which has been assigned to me for use in performance of my job, in 
accordance with the terms outlined below. 

 
Credit cards may be used for travel related business expenses (within and outside the 
City), and conference/class registrations incurred by the assigned individual only. 

Credit cards may be used for purchasing department supplies up to $_____________  
 

I have read and understand the credit card policies and procedures as set out in 
Credit Cards & Fuel Cards Policy 14.100. 

 
I understand the City Administrator will disallow my use of a City credit card for violation or 
misuse of the credit card and/or credit card policies and procedure and that such violation or 
misuse may subject me to discipline, including termination, under the City's Personnel 
Policies. 

 
I understand that each time I use, or authorize the use thereof, that I am adhering to the 
following statement: 

 
"I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that this is a true and correct claim for necessary 
expenditures incurred by me and that no payment has been received by me on account 
thereof." 

I understand that I will be held personally liable for inappropriate charges I incur to the City 
credit card, and payment for any such inappropriate charges is hereby authorized to be 
withheld from my paycheck. 

 
The undersigned individual has read and understands the above statements. 

 
 
 

 

 
Employee: ______________________________ Date: ______________ 
 
 
Department Head: _________________________ Date: ______________ 
 
 
 



 
 

 

ATTACHMENT C 
 
 

FUEL CARD USER AGREEMENT 
 
 
 

I, ____________________________, as an employee of the City of Medical Lake, accept 
personal responsibility for the safeguard and proper use of the City fuel card, which has 
been assigned to me or my department for use in performance of my job, in accordance 
with the terms outlined below. 

 
City fuel cards may be only used for purchasing fuel for City vehicles, using my individual 
fuel card pin number. I will not share my pin number with any employee other than the Fuel 
Card Manager, who is responsible for monitoring employee pins.  

 
I have read and understand the fuel card policies and procedures as set out in 
Credit Cards & Fuel Cards Policy 14.100. 

 
I understand the Fuel Card Manager will disallow my use of a City fuel card for violation or 
misuse of the credit card and/or credit card policies and procedure and that such violation or 
misuse may subject me to discipline, including termination, under the City's Personnel 
Policies. 

 
I understand that each time I use, or authorize the use thereof, that I am adhering to the 
following statement: 

 
"I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that this is a true and correct claim for necessary 
expenditures incurred by me and that no payment has been received by me on account 
thereof." 

I understand that I will be held personally liable for inappropriate charges I incur to the City 
credit card, and payment for any such inappropriate charges is hereby authorized to be 
withheld from my paycheck. 

 
The undersigned individual has read and understands the above statements. 
 

 
Employee: ______________________________ Date: ______________ 
 
 
Department Head: _________________________ Date: ______________ 
 
 

  



 
 
 

ATTACHMENT D 
 

Card Transaction Listing 
 
 

Cardholder: __________________ Last 4 of card #: ________ 
 

Department: __________________ 
 
 

 
Item Description Vendor Amount 
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
Employee Signature: ___________________________ 

Department Head Signature: ________________________ 

 



Introduction 

The following comprehensive set of training standards and expectations includes On-the-Job Training 
(OJT), Job Knowledge, Job Proficiency, and Job Experience as the hallmarks of a successful career and 
identifies the skills, qualifications, and proficiency requirements to develop and progress as Public Works 
Maintenance personnel at the City of Medical Lake. 

Training Standard Components  

On-the-Job Training (OJT) consists of hands-on, over the shoulder training at worksites and duty 
locations used to increase proficiency and skill for position qualification. 

Job Knowledge is satisfied through required worksite and safety training. Knowledge is mandatory of all 
Core Public Works Areas (defined in Standard Skill Requirements below). 

Job Proficiency results from hands on training provided on the job through tasks regularly performed in 
the work center (see Proficiency Levels as explained below). 

Job Experience is gained during and after OJT through various assignments, jobs, and projects that build 
expertise and competence. 

Skills are learned abilities that are developed through variety of practice and training. 

Qualifications come from formal, documented training that results in specific certifications. 

Proficiency Levels  

• Standard Skills 
o Task Performance ranges from limited to competent 

 Can do simple parts of the task to all parts of the task 
 Needs to be told or shown to merely needs spot checks of completed work. 

o Task Knowledge ranges from knowing nomenclature to knowing operating principles 
 Can name parts, tools, and simple facts to being able to identify why and when a 

task must be done and why each step is needed. 
o Subject Knowledge ranges from knowing facts to knowing analysis 

 Can identify basic facts and terms about the subject to analyzing facts and 
principles and drawing conclusions about the subject. 

• Journeyman Skills 
o Task Performance ranges from competent to highly proficient 

 Can do all parts of the task to completing the task quickly and accurately. 
 Needs only a spot check of completed work to being able to tell or show others 

how to do the task. 
o Task Knowledge ranges from knowing operating principles to advanced theory 

 Can identify why and when a task must be done and why each step is needed to 
predict, isolate, and resolve problems about the task. 

o Subject Knowledge ranges from knowing analysis to knowing evaluation 
 Can analyze facts and principles and draw conclusions about the subject to 

evaluating conditions and making proper decisions about the subject. 



Standard Skill and Knowledge Requirements (Task Accomplishment) 

• Core Public Works Areas 
o Streets 

 Assessment, repair, and maintenance of City streets and alleys  
 Install and maintain street and traffic signs 
 Snow Removal 
 Working knowledge of city storm water system 

o Water/Sewer 
 Waste-water collection system, lift stations, and pressure sewer mains 
 Water distribution system, taps, repair, water mains, and hydrants 
 Maintenance and operation of wells, transmission lines, and reservoirs 
 Read and repair water meters 
 All types of de-watering pumps 
 Monitor and test water quality, conduct water sampling 
 Install, maintain, and repair storm sewers and catch basins 

o Park Maintenance 
 Maintenance and repair of park equipment and irrigation systems 
 Maintenance and repair of lake aerators 
 Maintenance of sports playing fields and their layouts. 
 Parks buildings Facilities maintenance  

o Heavy Equipment (operation and maintenance) 
 Grader 
 Loader 
 Backhoe 
 Sweeper 
 Dump Truck 
 Service Truck 
 Various small tractors 

o Safety 
 CPR/First Aid 
 Water Basics 
 Confined Space 
 Flagger/Traffic Control 
 Trench Safety 

  



Journeyman Skill and Knowledge Requirements (Project Accomplishment) 

• All Standard Skill and Knowledge Requirements are completed and current. 
• 2 years of maintenance experience with a proven high level of understanding in all Core Public 

Works Areas. 
• Recommendation from the Maintenance Lead/Public Works Director 
• Plan, assign, supervise, and participate in assigned projects and report operational needs and 

results to the Maintenance Lead. 
• Additional Qualifications 

o No violent crime or domestic violence criminal law convictions. 
o No DUI or amended reduction DUI convictions in the past 10 years. 
o Driving Record/Abstract) with no more than two moving violations. 
o Proficiency Training 

 Team Leader 
 Trainer 
 Task Certifier 

o Certifications 
 Commercial Driver License (Class B) 
 Water Distribution Manager 1 or 2 
 Worksite Safety/OSHA Competent Person 

Maintenance Lead Skill Requirements (Project Management) 

• All Standard and Journeyman Skill and Knowledge Requirements are completed and current. 
• 5 years of maintenance/public works experience with mastery in all Core Public Works Areas. 
• Recommendation from the Public Works Director and Mayoral approval. 
• Receives direction and objectives from the Public Works Director and reports on operational 

needs and results. 
• Able to plan, assign, supervise, and participate in daily operations of the Public Works 

Department. 
• Able to assume full responsibility for training Maintenance Employees as necessary for the 

functioning of the Department. 
• Ability and willingness to pursue increased knowledge of budget, manpower, resources, 

compliance programs, and personnel management. 
o Prepare cost estimates for procurement of parts, equipment, and supplies. 
o Monitor and ensure compliance with applicable local, state, and federal laws. 
o Assist Public Works Director in timekeeping for Maintenance Employees. 

• Additional Task Qualification 
o Certifications 

 Cross Connection Control Specialist 

 



 

1 
 

CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
               City Council Regular Meeting      
                                                                                                            

6:30 PM                                                                                                                     Council Chambers 
January 3, 2023                                                                   MINUTES                    124 S. Lefevre Street 
 
NOTE:  This is not a verbatim transcript. Minutes contain only a summary of the discussion. A recording of the meeting 
is on file and available from City Hall. 
 
COUNCIL AND ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL PRESENT     
 
               Councilmembers                                                                                       Administration/Staff 
           Don Kennedy         Terri Cooper, Mayor 

Chad Pritchard                                                                                Sonny Weathers, City Administrator 
             Art Kulibert (via Zoom)                               Koss Ronholt, Finance Director/City Clerk 

Heather Starr        Sean King, City Attorney  
             Tony Harbolt                                                              Scott Duncan, Public Works Director 

Bob Maxwell                                                                                   Steve Cooper, WWTP Director        
                                                                                                          Roxanne Wright, Admin. Assistant 

                                                                                                  
        

                   
                                                                                   

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL 
A. Mayor Cooper called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm, led the pledge of allegiance, and conducted 

roll call. Position #2 is now vacant, councilmember Kulibert was present on Zoom, and all others 
were present in person. 
 

B. Absences - none 
 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL 
A. Councilmember Kennedy motioned to approve the agenda, seconded by councilmember Maxwell, 

motion carried 6-0. 
 

3. INTERESTED CITIZENS: AUDIENCE REQUESTS AND COMMENTS  
A. none 

 
4. ANNOUNCEMENTS / PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS – No items listed 

 
5. REPORTS 

A. City Council & Council Committee Reports 
i. Finance Committee – Councilmember Starr reported that they discussed claims and 

warrants. 
ii. Parks & Recreation Committee – Councilmember Kennedy shared that youth basketball is 

starting two weeks later than normal. New scoreboards for Waterfront Park have been 
delivered and will be installed by maintenance. Shared information regarding the AWC 



 

2 
 

employee wellness program. The city can qualify for a reduction in insurance rates if 
employees complete a wellness test. 

iii. Public Safety Update   
1. Deputy Gladden was present but had nothing to share.  
2. FD3 Chief Rohrbach shared that the fire department received many weather-related 

calls over the holidays. Shared that he does not have the year-end call data available 
yet.  

 
B. Council Comments    

i. Councilmember Pritchard – no report 
ii. Councilmember Starr – no report 

iii. Councilmember Kulibert – no report 
iv. Councilmember Kennedy – no report 
v. Councilmember Maxwell - no report 

vi. Councilmember Harbolt – no report 
 

C. Mayor Cooper – Thanked council for a great job on the work that went into passing the 2023 
budget.  Shared that the WWTP plant and Parks & Recreation positions will be posted soon. 

 
D. City Administrator & City Staff  

i. Sonny Weathers gave updates on the following: 
1. Shared that he recently met with Ptera Broadband. The fixed wireless option will be 

available first quarter. The website link is now available: Ptera.com/mdlkwa. Mr. 
Weathers encouraged citizens to go to the website and input their information to 
keep up with the progress. 

2. Shared letter received from Liberty Lake thanking our WWTP staff for their help 
with a recent incident.  

3. Shared appreciation to our first responders for their work on the recent domestic 
violence fatality incident in Medical Lake. Shared information to the public about 
www.endtheviolencespokane.org .  

ii. Mayor Cooper shared about the open committee positions. Councilmember Kennedy will 
continue serving on STA, and councilmember Pritchard will continue serving on the Spokane 
County Housing and Community Development Advisory Committee (HCDAC).  

1. Proposed the addition of a general government committee to consolidate some of 
the committees such as Public Works, Public Safety, and Information Systems. Will 
bring it back to a future agenda. 

 
6. WORKSHOP DISCUSSION  

A. City Council Vacancy Position Procedures 
i. Mr. Weathers shared a presentation on procedures for filling vacant city council positions. 

 
B. Committee Assignments (Internal and External) 

i. Motion to continue this topic to the next meeting made by councilmember Starr, seconded 
by councilmember Kennedy, motion carried 6-0. 
 
 

http://www.endtheviolencespokane.org/


 

3 
 

C. Parks and Recreation Director Job Description 
i. Mr. Weathers shared a presentation regarding the city’s parks and recreation department 

needs and the job description drafted for a Parks and Recreation Director. 
 

7. ACTION ITEMS 
A. Consent Agenda 

i. Approve December 20, 2022, minutes  
1. Motion to approve made by councilmember Kennedy, seconded by councilmember 

Maxwell, and motion carried 6-0. 
ii. Approve January 03, 2023, Claim Warrants 42015 through 42049 in the amount of 

$168,443.54. 
1. Finance committee reviewed and recommended approval of warrants. 
2. Motion to approve made by councilmember Starr, seconded by councilmember 

Maxwell, and motion carried 6-0. 
 

8. RESOLUTIONS 
A. 23-563 Amendment to Forte Payment Processing Agreement 

i. Motion to approve made by councilmember Kennedy, seconded by councilmember Starr, 
and motion carried 6-0. 

B. 23-564 TIB Grant Lefevre Street Restriping and Sidewalk 
i. Scott Duncan shared information regarding this project. 

ii. Motion to approve made by councilmember Kennedy, seconded by councilmember Maxwell 
and motion carried 6-0. 

C. 23-565 TIB Grant 2022 Maintenance Project 
i. Scott Duncan shared information regarding this project. 

ii. Motion to approve made by councilmember Kennedy, seconded by councilmember 
Pritchard, and motion carried 6-0. 

 
9. PUBLIC HEARING / APPEALS – No items listed 

 
10. ORDINANCES – No items listed 
 

11. EMERGENCY ORDINANCES – No items listed 
 

12. UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS  
A. CAO workshop 
B. Golf carts 
C. Maintenance position criteria for advancement 
D. Council policies and procedures 
E. PO’s for vactor truck 

 
13. INTERESTED CITIZENS: AUDIENCE REQUESTS AND COMMENTS  

A. Elizabeth Rosenbeck  – asked a question about why there will be sequestering during council 
position interviews. Mayor Cooper and Mr. Weathers addressed the question. 
 

14. EXECUTIVE SESSION – None 
 

 



 

4 
 

15. CONCLUSION  
A. Motion to conclude meeting made by councilmember Pritchard, seconded by councilmember 

Kennedy. Motion carried 6-0 and the meeting concluded at 7:43 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

              
             Terri Cooper, Mayor                                       Koss Ronholt, Finance Director/City Clerk 



Medical Lake City Council Vacancies 
 

Filling City Council Vacancies in Medical Lake 

1. Advertisement. The City Administrator will prepare and submit a press release to The 
Spokesman Review and The Cheney Free Press in addition to posting it on the City’s website and 
social media sites. The application period will be 14 days. 

2. Application. The application form will request the following information from the applicants: 
pertinent contact information; confirmation the applicant is a qualified elector (in accordance 
with RCW 42.04.20); and answers to City Council approved questions. Applications will be 
available at City Hall and on the City’s website. 

3. Supplemental Materials. In addition to the application form, the applicants will be required to 
provide a current resume and letter of interest. 

4. Conclusion of Application Period. The application period shall be open for a minimum of two 
weeks and no more than 30 days. Applications received by the deadline date and time will be 
copied and circulated by the City Administrator to the Mayor and City Council within one (1) 
business day following the deadline. Candidates who submit completed application packets by 
the deadline will be required to also submit information necessary for the City to conduct a 
criminal background check, the results of which will be provided to the Mayor and City Council. 

5. Council Evaluation of Candidates. City Councilmembers, individually, will conduct an initial 
review of all completed applications. Council will meet in executive session at the next regular 
Council meeting to discuss applicant qualifications. 
In the event the City receives more than three (3) completed applications, each City 
Councilmember will submit an unranked list of names of candidates the Councilmember wishes 
to move forward in the process. The City Administrator will provide an unranked, aggregated list 
to the Council during the executive session held prior to the interview meeting. Immediately 
following the executive session, Council shall meet in public session to select which candidates 
will be invited to participate in an interview at the next regular Council meeting. The decision as 
to which candidates will be interviewed will be at the sole discretion of the City Council.  
The City Administrator shall notify applicants selected for interview of the location, date, time, 
and format of City Council interviews. In the event Council does not select all applicants to move 
forward to the interview, the City Administrator will notify those candidates not selected of 
their status. 
Prior to the date and time of the interview meeting, each Councilmember shall submit one 
interview question and one back-up question to the Mayor and City Administrator. If two or 
more Councilmembers submit the same primary question, the Mayor shall choose whose to 
accept, and the back-up question(s) from the other Councilmember(s) will be used. The final list 
of questions will be provided to all of Council prior to the interview meeting. Each 
Councilmember will ask their question during the interviews. 

6. Interviews. Interviews shall be scheduled during a regular Council meeting. The meeting will be 
open to the public. The Mayor shall provide an overview of the format and ground rules for the 
interview portion of the meeting. In order to ensure each candidate has a fair and equal 
opportunity to speak with Council, all candidates will be asked to voluntarily sequester 
themselves at City Hall for the duration of all candidate interviews. Access to electronic devices 
shall be prohibited during sequestration. Candidates will be ushered to and from the City 
Council Chambers by a member of City staff in order to participate in their interview at the pre-



Medical Lake City Council Vacancies 
 

determined time. Candidates will be released from sequestration upon conclusion of the final 
interview and may observe the remainder of the public portion of the Council meeting. 
Each candidate interview shall be no more than twenty (20) minutes in length. Each interview 
shall follow the following format: 

• The applicant shall provide an opening statement to the City Council (up to 3 minutes). 
• The City Council shall ask the predetermined set of questions, one question per 

Councilmember, which must be responded to by the applicant. Each applicant will be 
asked and will answer the same set of questions and will have two (2) minutes to 
answer each question (up to 12 minutes). 

• The applicant may provide a closing statement to the City Council (up to 2 minutes). 
7. Voting. Upon completion of the interviews, Councilmembers will convene into executive session 

to further evaluate the qualifications of the candidates; however, all interviews, nominations, 
and votes taken by the Council shall be in open session. 
Voting will take place during open session of a regular Council meeting and will continue until a 
nominee receives a majority of votes. At any time during the voting process, the City Council 
may postpone voting until the next regular Council meeting. Nothing shall prevent the City 
Council from reconvening into executive session to further discuss candidate qualifications. 
The nomination and election process will proceed as follows: 

1. The Mayor calls for nominations. 
2. When there are no further nominations, the Mayor announces that nominations are 

closed. 
3. The nominees are then voted on in the order the nominations were made. The vote is 

taken by voice and show of hands. Each Councilmember may only vote for one 
candidate. 

4. The process continues until a nominee receives a majority of the votes.  
5. The first nominee receiving a majority vote is declared the new Councilmember.  If there 

is a tie vote, the Mayor may choose whether or not to break the tie.  If the Council fails 
to select an appointee from the nominees presented, the Council may: 
a. Recess into Executive Session to discuss the qualifications of the applicants. 
b. Make a motion to revote on the nominees.   
c. Make a motion to reopen the nominations and add to the initial slate. Once 

nominated, no candidate is removed from consideration unless they withdraw.   
d. Make a motion to postpone the vote on nominees. 
e. Solicit additional information from the applicants/nominees. 
f. Make any other allowable motion under Robert’s Rules of Order. 

The Mayor shall declare the nominee receiving the majority vote as the new Councilmember 
and he or she shall be sworn into office at the earliest opportunity or no later than the next 
regularly scheduled City Council meeting. 

  



Medical Lake City Council Vacancies 
 

Interview Format 

The Mayor will welcome each candidate and read the following script at the start of each interview: 

1. Your candidate interview is a tightly scheduled affair. You have 20 minutes to provide an 
opening statement (3 minutes) and answer one question from each Councilmember for a total 
of six (6) questions (2 minutes each). 

2. Time management cues will be provided to you. When “time” is announced, you may finish your 
sentence before the next question is asked. You will be evaluated based on your application 
materials and interview responses. 

3. If there is a pause between questions, it is because Councilmembers are taking notes. If you 
need a question repeated, please ask. 

4. Council will deliberate on the slate of candidates and take action making a selection later 
tonight during our regular Council meeting. 

Opening Comments (Mayor): Again, welcome and thank you for being here. Please start off by 
introducing yourself and providing your opening statement. 

Questions #1: (Councilmember Don Kennedy): 

 

Question #2: (Councilmember Bob Maxwell): 

 

Question #3: (Councilmember Tony Harbolt): 

 

Question #4: (Councilmember Art Kulibert): 

 

Question #5: (Councilmember Heather Starr): 

 

Question #6: (Councilmember Chad Pritchard): 

 

Closing Comments (Mayor): That is all the time we have. Thank you for your thoughtful responses. Our 
plan is to deliberate on the slate of candidates and take action tonight during the regular Council 
meeting, unless a motion is made and passes to continue deliberation until the next regular Council 
meeting. 



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
SPOKANE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-566 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE APPROVING 

LAND LEASE AMENDMENT NO. 2 BETWEEN THE STATE OF 
WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL HEALTH SERVICES AND THE 

CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON 

WHEREAS, the City of Medical Lake and State of Washington Department of 
Social Health Services (“DSHS”) previously entered into a Lease Agreement under Lease 
Number 2176-99164 (“Lease”) to lease certain real property as set forth therein; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Medical Lake and DSHS are desirous of amending the 
Lease pursuant to the attached Land Lease Amendment No. 2 contained in Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, Land Lease Amendment No. 2 identifies the revisions to be made to 
the Lease. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON as follows: 

Section 1.  Approval of Agreement. The Council hereby approves Land Lease 
Amendment No. 2 in the form attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “A” and by reference 
incorporated herein. 

Section 2.  Authorization. The Mayor is authorized and directed to execute the 
Land Lease Amendment No. 2 on behalf of the City in substantially the form attached as 
Exhibit “A”. The Mayor and Finance Director/City Clerk are each hereby authorized and 
directed to take such further action as may be appropriate in order to affect the purpose of 
this Resolution and the Land Lease Amendment No. 2 authorized hereby. 

Section 3.  Severability. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Resolution should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or 
constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution. 

Section 4.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately 
upon its adoption. 

 
.  

ADOPTED this 17th day of January, 2023. 

 

       _______________________________ 
       Mayor Terri Cooper 

 

 
 
 



Attest:       
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Clerk, Koss Ronholt    
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
________________________________ 
City Attorney, Sean P. Boutz 



DSHS No. 6776-57784-02 

 

LAND LEASE AMENDMENT No. 2 
BETWEEN 

THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 
THE DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL HEALTH SERVICES  

AND 
THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 

 

This Lease Amendment No. 2 modifies Lease Number 2176-99164 between the State of 
Washington, Department of Social and Health Services, hereinafter called the Lessor and the 
City of Medical Lake, hereinafter called the Lessee and will become effective upon full execution 
by the parties. 

Premise: The Lessor hereby leases to the Lessee the following described lands situated in 
Spokane County, Washington, to wit: 

That portion of the NW ¼, Section 19, Township 24 North, Range 41 East, W.M., lying north 
and west of the (Medical Lake-Tyler Road) State Highway No. 902; and also that portion of the 
NE ¼ NE ¼, Section 24, Township 24 North, Range 40 East, W.M., lying south of stone pillars 
of entrance to Eastern Washington State Hospital described as follows: The south 980 feet of 
the east 1,046.55 feet lying east of the approach road to Eastern Washington State Hospital 
except the west 30 feet and the south 30 feet thereof for road purposes. 

The above described lands contain an area of 45.0 acres, more or less. 

No other property owned by DSHS shall be used for any purpose by the Lessee, unless 
otherwise contracted to do so under a separate agreement.   

By Agreement of the above parties, the purpose of this Lease Amendment is to revise the 
original Lease Agreement as follows: 

1. To delete the language in section 1. Occupancy of the original Lease and replace it in 
its entirety with the following new language:  1. Occupancy The lease shall begin 
11/01/1967 and terminate on 4/30/2023, unless terminated sooner as provided herein. 

All other terms, conditions covenants, and amendments to this Lease, unless specifically altered, 
modified, or changed herein, remain in full force and effect 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment is executed on the latest date by the persons signing 
below, who warrant that they have the authority to execute the Amendment.  

 

CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE:  DEPARTMENT OF SOC IAL & HEALTH 
SERVICES:   

 

 
  

Signature  Signature 
 

 
  

Jeanne Rodriguez 
Print Name  Print Name 
 

 
  

Capital Assets Manager 
Title  Title 
 

 
  

Date  Date 



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
SPOKANE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-567 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE ESTABLISHING 

THE PARKS AND RECREATION DIRECTOR POSITION AND ASSOCIATED 
JOB DESCRIPTION. 

WHEREAS, City staff recommends the establishment of a new, non-union, 
exempt leadership position to support the City’s mission and strategic objectives through 
the planning, development, promotion, and delivery of comprehensive community 
recreation, youth and adult sports, community events, and outreach; and 

WHEREAS, City staff recommends that the Parks and Recreation Director 
position be set at a salary range of $4,916 - $6,700 per month based on required skills and 
duties; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council find that the attached job description 
serves the best interest of the City. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Parks and Recreation Director Job Description.  The City Council 
hereby establishes the position of Parks and Recreation Director and adopts the attached job 
description for the position.  The City Council finds the job description will assist the City 
in employing an individual on the basis of ability, education and training or experience to 
perform the duties of this position.  The Mayor and Council reserve the right to waive any 
job qualification to serve the interests of the City.   

Section 2. Employee.   Employee shall exercise his/her best efforts and due 
diligence in order to perform the duties of the position or employment, which are set forth 
in the job description and/or by union contract.   

Section 3. Effective Date.   This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 
passage by the City of Medical Lake City Council. 

 

ADOPTED this __17th____ day of __January_______________, 2023. 

 

 

   Mayor, Terri Cooper 

 
Attest:      Approved as to Form: 
 
 
__________________________   __________________________ 
Finance Director, Koss Ronholt   City Attorney, Sean P. Boutz 



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE PARKS AND RECREATION DIRECTOR JOB DESCRIPTION:   1 OF 5 
 

City of Medical Lake 
 

Job Description 
 
Job Title:  Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Department:  Parks and Recreation 
 
Reports To:  City Administrator  Effective Date:  1/17/2023 
 
Salary Range: $4,916 - $6,700 per month 
 
The Parks and Recreation Director is appointed by the Mayor and reports to the 
City Administrator. Work is performed under general guidance and direction and 
according to City policies, procedures, and various State and federal regulations. 
 
Major Function and Purpose 
 
The Parks and Recreation Director offers strong visionary and recreation 
experience to provide planning, oversight, leadership, and day-to-day 
management of the City’s parks and recreation programs. As a member of the 
leadership team, the Parks and Recreation Director supports the City’s mission 
and strategic objectives through the planning, development, promotion, and 
delivery of comprehensive community recreation, youth and adult sports, 
community events, and outreach. 
 
A. Essential Functions: 

1. Create and manage the vision, mission, goals, and strategic priorities for 
the Parks and Recreation Department to align with and support the 
mission, vision, strategic plan, and needs of the City. 

2. Plan and direct the development, marketing, implementation, and 
evaluation of a comprehensive community recreation program that meets 
city goals, including but not limited to sports, fitness, arts, adaptive and 
specialized recreation, senior programs, youth programs, adult programs, 
and community events. 

3. Work with advisory boards, elected officials, and other local and regional 
agencies to plan, create, and implement short-and long-range strategic 
program plans to maximize the effectiveness of program delivery in 
response to community need, established cost recovery, level of service 
standards, and other relevant factors. 



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE PARKS AND RECREATION DIRECTOR JOB DESCRIPTION:   2 OF 5 
 

4. Coach, mentor, manage, and train direct report staff and volunteers. 
Develop work schedules, maintain employee timesheets, and perform 
personnel evaluations as necessary. 

5. Work with the Public Works Director to oversee implementation of the 
Parks and Recreation work plan, assigned work, activities, and projects 
related to the acquisition, development, and maintenance of City parks 
and recreational facilities and programs. 

6. Meets frequently with the City Administrator to receive general direction 
and objectives of the Department and to report on operational needs and 
results.  Provides input to City Administrator on long-range goals, 
objectives, and budgeting for the Department. 

7. Recommend, develop, and maintain Parks and Recreation Department 
policies and procedures. Ensure programs comply with applicable 
regulations and requirements. 

8. Direct community outreach efforts to ensure Parks and Recreation 
information is effectively, proactively, and consistently communicated with 
the public. 

9. Work with Department staff, partner with local and regional agencies and 
organizations, and provide staff support to advisory boards to proactively 
identify opportunities to improve systems, processes, and services. 

10. Develop and implement an annual operating budget. Oversee the creation 
and tracking of revenue goals and budgeted expenses for each program. 

11. Perform other duties as required. 
 
The job description should not be construed to imply that these requirements are 
the exclusive standards of the position.  Incumbents will follow any other 
instructions and perform any other related duties, as may be lawfully required by 
their supervisor. 
 
B. Supervisory Responsibility 
 
This is the head supervisory position of the department, operating under the 
direction of the City Administrator.  The Parks and Recreation Director manages 
the Recreation Coordinator, Seasonal Employees, and volunteers.  Supervisory 
responsibilities include providing daily work direction, approval of absences and 
overtime, an overview of timesheets, and making recommendations regarding 
hiring, terminations, pay changes, or job changes. 
 
C. Reporting Relationships 
 
Reports to the City Administrator. 



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE PARKS AND RECREATION DIRECTOR JOB DESCRIPTION:   3 OF 5 
 

 
D. Knowledge, Skills, or Abilities Desired 
 
While requirements may be representative of minimum levels of knowledge, 
skills, and abilities, to perform this job successfully, the incumbent will possess 
the abilities or aptitudes to perform each duty proficiently. 

1. Knowledge of youth, teen, adult, recreational sports, adaptive and 
specialized recreation programs, and large-scale special event planning 
and delivery. 

2. Knowledge of and effective interpretation and application of federal, state, 
and local policies, laws, and regulations. 

3. Skilled in conflict resolution and providing excellent customer service to a 
broad range of participants and constituents. 

4. Strong problem solving, organizational, and goal setting experience with 
the ability to set priorities and realistic time parameters. 

5. Possess excellent written, listening, and verbal communication skills. 

6. Ability to complete multiple tasks simultaneously and accommodate shifts 
in priorities. 

7. Proficient computer skills with knowledge of spreadsheet and word 
processing; skills using data-based systems to maintain records and 
generate reports. 

8. Website and social media marketing acumen and skills using graphic 
design applications to produce activity guides. 

9. Ability to develop and maintain effective organizational structure, financial 
control, and management information systems for the Parks and 
Recreation function. 

10. Supervisory, training, and mentoring skills. 
 
E. Special Requirements 
 
A valid state driver’s license is required. First Aid and CPR certification is 
desirable. 
 
F. Working Conditions 
 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those 
an employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job.  
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities 



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE PARKS AND RECREATION DIRECTOR JOB DESCRIPTION:   4 OF 5 
 

to perform the essential functions.  Appropriate safety equipment, clothing, and 
training in its use are provided by the employer. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee primarily works in an office 
setting subject to frequent interruptions and occasionally works in outside 
weather conditions being exposed to wet and/or humid conditions and/or caustic 
chemicals. May be exposed to highly stressful situations and individuals who are 
irate or hostile; may be subject to long hours due to attendance at City Council 
and Committee meetings and other responsibilities required at this executive 
level. Flexibility to work evening and weekend hours and occasional overnight 
travel to conferences and training sessions is required. 
 
G. Contacts and Relationships 
 
The Parks and Recreation Director will have daily contact with employees of the 
City and with the citizens of the community.  In addition, he/she will be expected 
to present him/herself in a manner creditable to the City in all contacts with any 
individual, agency, or jurisdiction. 
 
H. Physical Requirements 
 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be 
met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities 
to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to use 
hands and fingers to handle, feel, or operate objects, tools, or controls and reach 
with hands and arms.  The employee is required to walk, sit, climb or balance, 
stoop, kneel, stand, and talk or hear. The employee must frequently lift and/or 
move up to 50 pounds.  Specific vision abilities required by this job include close 
vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and the 
ability to adjust focus. 
 
I. Experience and Training 

A bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university in recreation, park 
resources, business administration, public administration, education, or a related 
field.  

Five years or more of municipal Parks and Recreation services experience or 
demonstrated equivalent. 

Grant writing experience preferred. 

Any combination of experience and training that provides the desired skills, 
knowledge, and abilities will be considered. 



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE PARKS AND RECREATION DIRECTOR JOB DESCRIPTION:   5 OF 5 
 

 
Requirements outlined in this job description may be subject to modification to 
reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities who are otherwise qualified 
for employment in this position.  However, some requirements may exclude 
individuals who pose a direct threat or significant risk to the health and safety of 
themselves or other employees. 
 
J. Selection Guidelines  
 
Formal application, rating of education and experience, oral interview and 
reference check, and job-related tests may be required. 
The duties above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work 
that may be performed.  The omission of specific statements of duties does not 
exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related, or a logical 
assignment to the position. 
 

This job description does not constitute an employment agreement 
between the Employer and employee and is subject to change as the 
needs of the Employer and requirements of the job change.  This job 
description should not be construed to imply that these requirements are 
the exclusive standards of the position.  The duties listed above are 
intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may be 
performed.  Incumbents will follow any other instructions, and perform any 
other related duties, as may be lawfully required by their supervisor. 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ _________________ 
Signature      Date 

 
 


	Parks and Recreation Director Job Description.pdf
	City of Medical Lake
	Job Description
	Major Function and Purpose
	A. Essential Functions:
	B. Supervisory Responsibility
	C. Reporting Relationships
	F. Working Conditions
	The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the ...
	G. Contacts and Relationships
	The Parks and Recreation Director will have daily contact with employees of the City and with the citizens of the community.  In addition, he/she will be expected to present him/herself in a manner creditable to the City in all contacts with any indiv...
	H. Physical Requirements
	The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the ...
	I. Experience and Training
	J. Selection Guidelines







